
 
 

Regional Transportation Planning Agency - Local Transportation Commission 
Monterey County Service Authority for Freeways and Expressways 

Monterey County Regional Development Impact Fee Joint Powers Agency 
Email: info@tamcmonterey.org  

Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee 
Tuesday, November 19, 2024 

**2:00 PM** 
 

MEETING LOCATION 
Voting members must attend a physical meeting location to count towards quorum 

1441 Schilling Place,Salinas, California  
Saffron Conference Room 

Wi-Fi Network: MontereyCty-Guest (no password required)  
 

Members of the public & non-voting members may join meeting online at:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/819167755?pwd=VE91U1FBK1IwOEQzMGhpdEMvY2tndz095 

OR 
Via teleconference at +1 669 900 6833  

 
Meeting ID: 819 167 755 

Password: 614363 
 

Please note: If all board members are present in person, public participation by Zoom is for 
convenience only and is not required by law. If the Zoom feed is lost for any reason, the meeting 

may be paused while a fix is attempted, but the meeting may continue at the discretion of the 
Chair.  

 
Please see all the special meeting instructions at the end of this agenda  

  

1. QUORUM CHECK - CALL TO ORDER 
 Call to order and self-introductions. If you are unable to attend, please contact Maria 

Montiel, Administrative Assistant. Your courtesy to the other members to assure a 
quorum is appreciated.  

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 Any member of the public may address the Board on any item not on the agenda but within 

the jurisdiction of the Board. All public comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless 
specified otherwise by the committee chair. Comments in items on this agenda may be given 
when that agenda item is discussed. Persons who wish to address the Board for public 
comment or on an item on the agenda are encouraged to submit comments in writing to Maria 
at maria@tamcmonterey.org by 4:30 pm the Friday before the meeting, and such comments 
will be distributed to the Board before the meeting. 

Page 1 of 26

mailto:info@tamcmonterey.org
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/819167755?pwd=VE91U1FBK1IwOEQzMGhpdEMvY2tndz095
mailto:maria@tamcmonterey.org


 
Alternative Agenda Format and Auxiliary Aids: If requested, the agenda shall be made 
available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 
202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC Sec. 12132), and the federal rules 
and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals requesting a disability-related 
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, may contact 
Transportation Agency staff at 831-775-0903. Auxiliary aids or services include wheelchair 
accessible facilities, sign language interpreters, Spanish language interpreters, and printed 
materials in large print, Braille or on disk. These requests may be made by a person with a 
disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in the public 
meeting and should be made at least 72 hours before the meeting. All reasonable efforts will 
be made to accommodate the request. 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
 Approve the staff recommendations for items listed below by majority vote with one motion. 

Any member may pull an item off the Consent Agenda to be moved to the end of the 
CONSENT AGENDA for discussion and action. 

 3.1. APPROVE the Draft Minutes of the August 20, 2024, Meeting.  
  - Maria Montiel 

   
The Draft August 20, 2024, Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee Minutes are 
attached. 

 3.2. RECEIVE the 2025 Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee Meeting Schedule 

  - Theresa Wright 

   
The Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee meetings in 2025 follow the 
existing practice of four meetings per year. The meetings will be held on the 
third Tuesday of the month in February, April, August and October 2025 at 2:00 
pm. 

 3.3. RECEIVE the call for nominations for the 23rd Annual Transportation Excellence 
awards to honor individuals, businesses, groups or projects for their efforts to improve 
the transportation system in Monterey County.   

  - Theresa Wright 

   
The Transportation Agency for Monterey County would like to encourage and 
appreciate the efforts made by Monterey County residents, businesses and 
employees to improve transportation in the county by awarding Transportation 
Excellence Awards.  

4. RECEIVE update and PROVIDE FEEDBACK on proposed revisions to the Measure X annual 
reporting process. 

 - Janneke Strause 

Page 2 of 26



  
The Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee ensures transparency in the use of 
Measure X funds through audits and annual reports. In response to committee 
feedback, staff will propose producing a standalone Measure X Annual Report that 
provides clear and concise financial and audit information to the public.  

5. RECEIVE training on the Brown Act, which sets the rules for the noticing and conduct of public 
meetings.  

 - Theresa Wright, Shane Strong 

  
The Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code sections 54950-54963, referred to as the 
"Brown Act') is intended to provide public access to meetings of California local 
government agencies. Shane Strong, Counsel  for the Transportation Agency, will 
present a training session on the Brown Act to the Measure X Citizens Oversight 
Committee.  

6. CALL for nominations and ELECT a Chair and Vice of the Measure X Citizens Oversight 
Committee, for a two-year term beginning January 1, 2025. 

 - Theresa Wright 

  
The Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee's Chair and Vice Chair terms of service 
expire on December 31, 2024. This report calls for nominations and election of a Chair 
and Vice Chair to serve effective January 2025 for a two-year term.  

7. CALL for nominations and ELECT members to serve on the Measure X Audit Sub-
committee.  

 - Theresa Wright 

  
The Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee is responsible for conducting an 
independent audit to assure that Measure X funds were expended in accordance with 
the requirements of the Transportation Safety & Investment Plan and to prepare an 
annual audit report. This report seeks the nomination and election of Oversight 
Commitee members to serve on the audit sub-commitee with  the Comittee's Chair and 
Vice Chair to conduct the independent audit for fiscal year 2023/2024 and to prepare the 
annual audit report. 

8. ANNOUNCEMENTS and/or COMMENTS 

9. ADJOURN 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Next Transportation Oversight Committee meeting: 

Tuesday, February 18, 2025, at 2:00 P.M.  
PHYSICAL LOCATION - 

County Building at 1441 Schilling Place, Salinas CA, in the Cayenne Conference Room 
 

A quorum of voting members is required to be present to hold this meeting. 
 

Page 3 of 26



There will be a zoom link for hybrid participation by members of the public. 
 

If you have any items for the next agenda, please submit them to: 
 Theresa Wright, Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee Coordinator 

theresa@tamcmonterey.org   
 

Important Meeting Information  
Agenda Packet and Documents: Any person who has a question concerning an item on this agenda 
may call or email the Agency office to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda. Complete agenda packets are on display online at the Transportation Agency for 
Monterey County website. Documents relating to an item on the open session that are distributed to 
the Committee less than 72 hours prior to the meeting shall be available for public review at the 
Agency website. Agency contact information is as follows:  

Transportation Agency for Monterey County 
www.tamcmonterey.org 

55B Plaza Circle, Salinas, CA 93901 
TEL: 831-775-0903 

EMAIL: info@tamcmonterey.org 
 
Agenda Items: The agenda will be prepared by Agency staff and will close at noon five (5) working 
days before the regular meeting. Any member of the Board may request in writing an item to appear 
on the agenda. The request shall be made by the agenda deadline and any support papers must be 
furnished by that time or be readily available. 
 

Page 4 of 26

mailto:theresa@tamcmonterey.org
https://www.tamcmonterey.org/
mailto:info@tamcmonterey.org


 

Agenda Item 3.1. 

 
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY  

Memorandum  
To: Citizens Oversight Committee 

From: Maria Montiel, Administrative Assistant 

Meeting Date: November 19, 2024 

Subject: Draft XTOC Minutes 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
APPROVE the Draft Minutes of the August 20, 2024, Meeting.  
 
SUMMARY: 
The Draft August 20, 2024, Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee Minutes are attached. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft X-TOC Minutes - August 2024 
 
WEB ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 

Page 5 of 26



     

 TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY (TAMC) 
Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee (X-TOC) 

Meeting held at the Monterey County Government Center at Schilling Place 
Cinnamon Conference Room, 1441 Schilling Place, Salinas   

Draft minutes of August 20, 2024 
 

  

Voting Members 
AUG 
22 

OCT 
22 

FEB 
23 

APR 
23 

AUG 
23 

OCT 
23 

FEB 
24 

APR 
24 

AUG 
24 

Kevin Dayton 
Salinas Valley 
Taxpayers 
Association  
(Rick Giffin) 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 

 

- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

Maria Vera  
Transit Users  
(Andrea Manzo) 

E 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

Janet Brennan 
League of Women 
Voters  
(Howard Fosler) 

P 
 

E 

P 
 

P(A) 

E 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

P 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

P 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

A 
 

P(A) 

A 
 

P(A) 

A 
 

P(A) 

Tom Rowley 
Monterey Peninsula 
Taxpayers 
Association 
(Rick Heuer) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

P 
 
- 

P(VC) 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

Kalah Bumba 
Senior or disabled 
services agency 
(John McPherson) 

E 
 

P(A) 

E 
 

P(A) 

E 
 

P(A) 

E 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

A 
 

P(A) 

A 
 

P(A) 

A 
 

P(A) 

Victoria Beach 
Bicycling Advocate 
(vacant) 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 

P(VC) 

Rod Smalley 
Labor Organization 
(Tony Garcia) 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

P P 
 

P 

Christie Cromeenes 
Central Coast 
Builders Association 
(vacant) 

A 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
 

A 
 

Greg Hamer 
Salinas Valley 
Chamber of 
Commerce 
(vacant) 

A 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

A P 
 
 
 
 

Monica Lal  
Monterey Peninsula 
Chamber of 
Commerce  
(vacant) 

P 
 

P(A) 

A 
 

P(A) 

E 
 

P(A) 

E 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

A 
 
- 

A 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

A 
 
- 

A A 

Page 6 of 26



DRAFT Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee Minutes of August 20, 2024 
Page 2  

Dale Agron 
Habitat Preservation 
(Rachel Saunders, 
 Big Sur Land Trust) 

E 
 

P(A) 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

E 
 

P(A) 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

Martine Watkins 
Hospitality 
(Gary Cursio) 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

V 
 
- 

V 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 

Norm Groot, Chair 
Agriculture 

(Paul Arnaudo) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 
- 

P 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

A 
 
- 

P 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

A 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

Darren Fort 
Education 
(Ralph Porras)  

A 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 
- 

A 
 

P(A) 

A 
 

P(A) 

P 
 
- 

Paula Getzelman 
South County 
(Carol Kenyon) 

P 
 

E 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

E 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

P 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

P 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

P 
 
- 

A 
 

P(A) 

E 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

Chris Barrera 
Latino Organization 
(Diana Jimenez) 

P 
 

V 

A 
 
- 

P 
 

V 

P 
 
- 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 
- 

A 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 

P(A) 

Rosemarie Barnard 
North County 
(Ed Mitchell) 

E 
 

V 

P 
 

V 

P 
 

V 

P 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

A 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P(VC) 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

Robin Lee  
Pedestrian 
(Laurie Eavey) 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

A 
 

P(A) 

A 
 
- 

Andromeda Davila 
Youth/College 
(vacant) 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

E 
 
- 

V 
 
- 

V 
 
- 

P 
 
- 

P 
 
 

E 
 
 

Sean Hebard, Vice 
Chair 
Construction 
(Keith Severson) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

P 
 

P(A) 

A 
 

P(A) 

A 
 

P(A) 
(VC) 

TRANSPORTATION 
AGENCY STAFF 

AUG 
22 

OCT 
22 

FEB 
23 

APR 
23 

AUG 
23 

OCT 
23 

FEB 
24 

APR 

24 

AUG 

24 

Todd Muck,  
Executive Director 

P P P P P P P P P 

Theresa Wright, 
Community Outreach 
Coordinator 

P P P P P P P P P 

Mike Zeller, Director 
of Programming & 
Project Delivery 

P P P P(VC) P P P P P(VC) 

Jeff Kise, Director of 
Finance & Admin 

E E P P(VC) P(VC) P(VC) P(VC) P(VC) P(VC) 

Laurie Williamson, 
Senior Engineer 

E P E P P(VC) P A  - 

Page 7 of 26



DRAFT Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee Minutes of August 20, 2024 
Page 3  

Maria Montiel, 
Administrative 
Assistant 

P P P E P P P P P 

Doug Bilse, Principal 
Engineer 

A P A P P(VC) A P(VC) A P 

Alissa Guther, Transp. 
Planner 

P A A A A A A A - 

Aaron Hernandez, 
Transp. Planner 

A P P P P P P P P 

Janneke Strause, 
Transp. Planner 

A P A P A A E E P 

P = present 
P(A)= present (alternate) 
(VC)= Zoom Video Conference 
E = excused absence 
A = unnoticed absence 
- = alternate absent 
V = vacant position 

  

OTHERS PRESENT  

Don Wilcox City of Soledad Alex Ramos City of Soledad  

     

   

1. QUORUM CHECK – CALL TO ORDER  

 Norm Groot, Committee Chair, called the meeting to order at 2:08 p.m. A quorum was established, 

and Maria Montiel took roll call. Following the roll call, members introduced themselves and the 

organization/interest that they represent.  

   

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

 None. 

 

   

3. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

M/S/C Smalley / Rowley /unanimous  

3.1 Approved the draft minutes of the April 16, 2024, meeting.  

 END OF CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 

  

Page 8 of 26



DRAFT Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee Minutes of August 20, 2024 
Page 4  

4 CITY OF SOLEDAD MEASURE X PRESENTATION  

 The Committee received a presentation on local Measure X projects from the City of Soledad. 

Don Wilcox, Public Works Director & Engineer from the City of Soledad provided historical 
information about the city and their Measure X processes. He then introduced Alex Ramos, the 
City’s Assistant Engineer to discuss their Measure X funded projects.  
 
Mr. Ramos reported that the City performed a variety of maintenance projects in the form of 
repairs to distressed and cracked road segments, including the Front Street Maintenance 
Project this fiscal year. He noted that the project involves maintenance activities to rehabilitate 
Front Street, an existing 2-lane arterial which is a principal corridor within the City of Soledad 
and serves as a Highway 101 bypass.   
  
Additionally, the City has completed a much-needed Pavement Management Program Update 
using StreetSaver Software as well as continued to operate their successful Sidewalk Cost-Share 
Program.   
 
In conclusion Mr. Ramos noted that the Cost-Share program assists Soledad property owners in 
repairing or replacing old and damaged sidewalks. He stated that the program’s goal is to 
promote a safer and pedestrian-friendly city and walking as a means of transportation.  

The Committee had the following input and questions on the local Measure X projects from the 

City of Soledad: 

• Consider replacing the trees with Chinese Pistache tree or Arbutus tree or street friendly 

trees 

• Consider installing streetlights. 

• Considering ADA accessibility.  

• Consider pedestrian and bicycle safety.  

• Consider green bike boxes for safer sidewalk accessibility. 

• Consider sharing with other cities the lessons learned on the project. 

  

5. TORO PARK CUT-THROUGH TRAFFIC PILOT PROJECT 

 The Committee received a status report on the Toro Park Cut-Through Traffic Pilot Project. 

Doug Bilse, Principal Engineer, TAMC, reported that the Transportation Agency implemented a 

pilot project to reduce cut-through traffic using Toro Park roads to avoid congestion on SR 68. 

He noted that this work was done in conjunction with the County of Monterey Public Works 

Department and Caltrans. 

In conclusion, Mr. Bilse noted that committee members met three times to identify a viable 

option that could eliminate cut-through traffic. He reported that the committee unanimously 

agreed to propose a partial road closure of Torero Drive. Mr. Bilse stated that the group 

Page 9 of 26



DRAFT Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee Minutes of August 20, 2024 
Page 5  

understood that the partial road closure would re-route neighborhood traffic to the Portola 

Interchange and increase the travel time of westbound destinations, especially when Highway 

68 was congested. The committee agreed that another community workshop would be held in 

October 2024 to gather information about the pilot project and make a recommendation on a 

permanent solution. 

The Committee had the following input and questions on the Toro Park Cut-Through Traffic Pilot 

Project: 

• Consider working with Caltrans to extend the time that traffic signal light on Highway 68 

is green. 

• Consider working with the schools on signage. 

• Consider further community outreach. 

  

6. MEASURE X ANNUAL REPORT 

 The Committee received an update and provided feedback on proposed revisions to the 

Measure X annual audit reporting tables. 

Mike Zeller, Director of Programing & Project Delivery, reported that the Measure X Citizens 

Oversight Committee ensures transparency in the use of Measure X funds through audits and 

annual reports. This responsibility includes conducting independent audits, reviewing project 

delivery schedules, making recommendations on the Transportation Safety & Investment Plan, 

and preparing comprehensive annual reports for the public and the Transportation Agency 

Board of Directors. The Measure X annual audit report is a summary compilation of the 

information provided by the jurisdictions to verify their compliance. 

In conclusion Mr. Zeller noted that in response to concerns about how the findings are 

presented in the annual report, Agency staff will propose improvements to the report template, 

including clearer financial data and compliance details. He noted that these updates aim to 

enhance transparency and public understanding of Measure X fund usage.  

The Committee had the following input and questions on the Measure X annual audit reporting: 

• Consider adding how much funding the cities have spent and how much they received. 

• Consider adding a link with additional information to visit the TAMC website. 

• Consider encouraging the cities to adopt standard complete street policies that include 

pedestrian and bicycle enhancements.   

 

  

Page 10 of 26



DRAFT Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee Minutes of August 20, 2024 
Page 6  

7. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND/OR COMMENTS 

 New committee member Tony Garcia, Labor Organization alternate representative introduced 

himself to the committee.  

Committee member Greg Hammer Consider asked if TAMC was working with cities to 

educate/encourage them to improve bicycle safety improvements when doing re-striping work 

on roadways.  

Committee member John McPherson announced that Alliance on Aging was one of 20 statewide 

agencies to receive a grant to develop an “‘Age & Disability Action Plan” for seniors and those 

with disabilities in Monterey County. The plan’s emphasis is on making the communities in 

South County, North County and Salinas friendlier for those two specific demographics.  

 

Theresa Wright announced the next meeting will be on October 8, 2024, at 2pm in the Saffron 

conference room. 

  

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 Chair Groot adjourned the meeting at 4:09 p.m. 

 

Page 11 of 26



 

Agenda Item 3.2. 

 
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY  

Memorandum  
To: Citizens Oversight Committee 

From: Theresa Wright, Community Outreach Coordinator 

Meeting Date: November 19, 2024 

Subject: 2025 Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee Meeting Schedule 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
RECEIVE the 2025 Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee Meeting Schedule 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee meetings in 2025 follow the existing practice of four 
meetings per year. The meetings will be held on the third Tuesday of the month in February, April, 
August and October 2025 at 2:00 pm. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee meets quarterly on the third Tuesday of the month in 
February, April, August and October 2025 at 2:00 pm. In accordance with that schedule, the 2025 
Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee meetings will be held at the Government Center located at 
1441 Schilling Place in Salinas on the following dates: 

• February 18 
• April 15 
• August 19 
• October 21 

  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Measure X Citizen Oversight Committee 2025 Calendar 
 
WEB ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 

Page 12 of 26



Measure X Citizen Oversight Committee

2025 Committee Calendar

The Measure X Citizen Oversight Committee 2025 schedule 
follows the existing standard of four meetings per year, held 
on the third Tuesday of the month in February, April, August 
and October at 2:00 p.m.  Therefore, the meeting dates are as 
follows:

Meetings:

• February 18
• April 15
• August 19
• October 21

“The Transportation Agency for Monterey County (TAMC) is responsible for 
investing in regional transportation projects for Monterey County residents, 
businesses and visitors.  The mission of TAMC is to develop and maintain a 
multimodal transportation system that enhances mobility, safety, access, 

environment quality and economic activities in Monterey County.

Page 13 of 26



 

Agenda Item 3.3. 

 
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY  

Memorandum  
To: Citizens Oversight Committee 

From: Theresa Wright, Community Outreach Coordinator 

Meeting Date: November 19, 2024 

Subject: Transportation Excellence Awards  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
RECEIVE the call for nominations for the 23rd Annual Transportation Excellence awards to honor 
individuals, businesses, groups or projects for their efforts to improve the transportation system in 
Monterey County.   
 
SUMMARY: 
The Transportation Agency for Monterey County would like to encourage and appreciate the efforts 
made by Monterey County residents, businesses and employees to improve transportation in the 
county by awarding Transportation Excellence Awards.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
With the Transportation Excellence Awards, the Transportation Agency shows its appreciation to the 
local community for its outstanding efforts to improve transportation in Monterey County. The program 
has award categories for individuals, businesses/groups, and programs or projects. Examples of 
potential awards include but are not limited to: 

• Projects that exemplify TAMC's mission to develop and maintain a multimodal transportation 
system that enhances mobility, safety, access, environmental quality, and economic activities 
in Monterey County. 

• Innovative activities that promote safer or more efficient use of the local transportation network. 
• Citizens or organizations that have made significant efforts to inform and educate the public 

about transportation issues. 
• Successful efforts to improve transit services and encourage the use of commute options as 

alternatives to driving alone. 
• Transportation employees who excel at their jobs and go the extra mile to improve our 

transportation system. 

 
The nomination form is attached to this staff report and is also available on the Transportation Agency 
website. Board members are encouraged to distribute nomination forms and submit nominations. The 
form can be submitted online, mailed to Transportation Agency offices or emailed to Theresa Wright 
(at theresa@tamcmonterey.org). The deadline for nominations is December 6, 2024. The 
Transportation Agency Executive Committee will select the awards recipients at its January 2025 

Page 14 of 26



meeting, and the awards ceremony will take place during the regular January 22, 2025, 
Transportation Agency Board meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Transportation Excellence Awards Nomination Form 2024 
 
WEB ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 

Page 15 of 26



TTrraannssppoorrttaattiioonn  EExxcceelllleennccee  AAwwaarrddss
AAwwaarrddss  PPrrooggrraamm  NNoommiinnaattiioonn  ffoorrmm  (Please fill out form completely)  

1. Name of Nominee
Give name and address of individual (provide title), firm, group, or organization. 
Nominee: 

Category:  (circle one) Individual Business /Group Program Project 
Address: Email: 
City: Zip Phone: 
If Nominee is a firm, group or organization, provide contact name: 
Title: Phone: 

Email: 

2. Description:
Describe the individual, business, group, program or project that is being nominated. Include any specific 
information that may apply, such as the number of people who worked on the project, number of hours spent 
on the project, number of people served or affected, cost to those served, and annual cost of operation. 
Indicate whether the nominee is a volunteer or paid. Enclose any photographs or other materials that will 
contribute additional information to the nomination. Use extra pages as needed. 

3. Date or duration of program:
When did this program take place? When was it completed? If ongoing, when did it start? 

4. Significance/Result:
State how this person, group or project has contributed to improving transportation in Monterey County in 
current calendar year. Describe the impact on those served and value created by this activity, as well as any 
savings provided to users, taxpayers or providers by the nominee. Use extra pages as needed.  

5. Person Submitting Nomination:
Name: Phone: 
Title: Email: 
Organization: 
Address: 
City: Zip: 

Please return by noon, December 6, 2024 via online, fax: 831-775-0897; email: 
Theresa@tamcmonterey.org; or mail to: Transportation Agency for Monterey County, Attn: Theresa 
Wright, 55-B Plaza Circle, Salinas CA, 93901. For additional information, please call 831-775-4403.  

Page 16 of 26



 

Agenda Item 4. 

 
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY  

Memorandum  
To: Citizens Oversight Committee 

From: Janneke Strause, Associate Transportation Planner 

Meeting Date: November 19, 2024 

Subject: Measure X Annual Report 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
RECEIVE update and PROVIDE FEEDBACK on proposed revisions to the Measure X annual 
reporting process. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee ensures transparency in the use of Measure X funds 
through audits and annual reports. In response to committee feedback, staff will propose producing a 
standalone Measure X Annual Report that provides clear and concise financial and audit information 
to the public.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
In the past fiscal year, 2022/2023, Measure X generated $39.6 million in revenues. Of that amount, 
after payment of administrative expenses, 60% was distributed to the cities and the County for local 
street and road projects, while the remaining 40% was programmed to regional safety and mobility 
projects. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee is charged with ensuring transparency and 
accountability in the expenditure of Measure X sales tax funds. This responsibility includes 
conducting independent audits, reviewing project delivery schedules, making recommendations on 
the Transportation Safety & Investment Plan, and preparing comprehensive annual reports for the 
public and the Transportation Agency Board of Directors. 
 
The Measure X annual audit report appears as a section within the Transportation Agency for 
Monterey County Annual Report (linked below) and is a summary compilation of the information 
provided by the jurisdictions to verify their compliance. After the release of the most recent annual 
report for fiscal year 2022/23, committee and Transportation Agency Board members provided 
feedback regarding the presentation and content of the Measure X annual audit report. This feedback 
included requests to: 

• Provide more comprehensive financial information, including detailed figures for revenues, 
expenses, or allocations. 

• Clarify language used in the report, such as "Late compliance," to be more clear about the 
compliance status of jurisdictions. 

• Include information on the 40% of funds allocated for regional projects, along with the 60% of 

Page 17 of 26



Measure X funds for local jurisdictions. 

To address the feedback received from the committee and TAMC Board, staff presented proposed 
changes to the annual report template at the August 20, 2024 Citizens Oversight Committee Meeting: 

1. Inclusion of Detailed Financial Data: Comprehensive tables showing total Measure X 
revenues, expenditures, and allocations for each jurisdiction. 

2. Clarification of Compliance Status: Revised language for clarity, indicating full compliance or 
ongoing issues. 

3. Expansion of Reporting: Inclusion of information on the 40% of funds allocated to regional 
projects, ensuring comprehensive oversight. 

Feedback on the proposed changes at the August meeting included: 

• More information is needed about what it means to be out of compliance 
• Include pie charts of spending or other infographics  
• Provide the summary financials chart 
• Tell the story about why jurisdictions are not spending all the Measure X funds they receive 

 
Staff is now proposing for the Audit Sub-Committee to produce a standalone Measure X Annual 
Report in order to provide all the information requested by the committee. To facilitate discussion with 
the Committee, staff has prepared a draft outline for how the proposed Measure X Annual Report 
could be compiled: 

1. Executive Summary from the Measure X Oversight Committee Chair 
2. Measure X Overview 
3. Summary Compliance Chart 
4. Funding and Spending Infographic 
5. How Funds are Leveraged: Project Spotlight 
6. Annual Fiscal Profile - Revenues and Expenditures 
7. Carryover Balances and Upcoming Projects 

 
Examples of the compliance chart, infographics, fiscal profile, and annual reports from comparative 
agencies are in the attached PowerPoint PDF. Staff seeks input on the proposed Measure X Annual 
Report format and outline. The PowerPoint presentation for this item with draft outline and example 
financial charts and infographics is linked as a web attachment below. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
None 
 
WEB ATTACHMENTS: 
Transportation Agency for Monterey County - 2023 Annual Report 
2024 Measure X Annual Report - Presentation 
 

Page 18 of 26

https://www.tamcmonterey.org/files/b72f7b9a2/TAMC_2023AnnualReport_English_WEB.pdf
https://tamcmonterey.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/Edj3wbt5tFJOic_IBG17OOUBcMgP3owQiH2xiiKRPjRpiQ?e=ljGjcV


 

Agenda Item 5. 

 
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY  

Memorandum  
To: Citizens Oversight Committee 

From: Theresa Wright, Community Outreach Coordinator, Shane Strong 

Meeting Date: November 19, 2024 

Subject: Brown Act Public Meeting Training 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
RECEIVE training on the Brown Act, which sets the rules for the noticing and conduct of public 
meetings.  
 
SUMMARY: 
The Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code sections 54950-54963, referred to as the "Brown Act') is 
intended to provide public access to meetings of California local government agencies. Shane Strong, 
Counsel  for the Transportation Agency, will present a training session on the Brown Act to the 
Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
None.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963), referred to as the "Brown Act') is 
intended to provide public access to meetings of California local government agencies.  
 
In order to achieve this objective, governmental bodies subject to the requirements of the Brown Act 
must provide public notice of their meetings, post agendas of the subjects to be discussed at those 
meetings, and provide public access to those meetings. Public notice of every meeting subject to the 
Brown Act is required, and access is mandatory unless the meeting is held in closed session under a 
specific exception contained in the Act. 
 
However, the Brown Act is complex, and problems often arise in its application. The following issues 
come up consistently: 

• What kinds of public bodies are subject to the Act? 
• Has the public body properly given notice of the matters it intends to address in the agenda for 

the meeting? 
• What constitutes a "meeting," and what kinds of communications among members of a 

legislative body are permitted outside of meetings? 
• Are the exceptions permitting closed sessions being properly applied? 

 
Shane Strong, Counsel for the Transportation Agency for Monterey County, will present a training 
session on the Brown Act to the Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee.  

Page 19 of 26



 
Attached to this report is the "The ABCs of Open Government Laws" brochure.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. ABCs of the Brown Act (1) 
 
WEB ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 

Page 20 of 26



Page 21 of 26



Page 22 of 26



 

Agenda Item 6. 

 
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY  

Memorandum  
To: Citizens Oversight Committee 

From: Theresa Wright, Community Outreach Coordinator 

Meeting Date: November 19, 2024 

Subject: Election of Committee Chair and Vice Chair 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
CALL for nominations and ELECT a Chair and Vice of the Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee, 
for a two-year term beginning January 1, 2025. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee's Chair and Vice Chair terms of service expire on 
December 31, 2024. This report calls for nominations and election of a Chair and Vice Chair to serve 
effective January 2025 for a two-year term.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
In accordance with the Policies & Project Descriptions for the Transportation Safety & Investment 
Plan, a Citizens Oversight Committee representing a diverse range of community interests was 
formed within 6 months of voter approval of Measure X in November 2016. Members of the 
committee were appointed to serve by the Transportation Agency's Board of Directors on March 22, 
2017, and the following month the Board approved the Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee 
Bylaws, which governs the committee. The Committee meets about 4 times per year to receive 
project and program updates and review the audit of the agencies receiving Measure X funds. 
 
The Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee was formed in order to oversee and provide feedback 
on the Transportation Agency's implementation of the Transportation Safety and Investment Plan. 
The Oversight Committee's purpose is to be an additional layer of accountability so that the public is 
assured that the Transportation Agency, County of Monterey and the participating cities are operating 
consistent with the terms of the Ordinance.  
 
The Committee's duties as defined in the Policies & Project Descriptions for the Transportation Safety 
& Investment Plan are as follows: 

• Conduct independent audits to assure that funds are being expended in accordance with the 
requirements of the Transportation Safety & Investment Plan; 

• Review and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the plan, prior to the 
Transportation Agency Board considerations; 

• Prepare annual reports regarding the administration of the program, to be presented to the 

Page 23 of 26



Transportation Agency Board of Directors and available for public review. 

 
On Tuesday, October 18, 2022, members of the Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee elected 
Norm Groot as Chair and Sean Hebard as Vice Chair of the oversight committee for a two-year term. 
The terms of service for the Chair and Vice Chair expire on December 31, 2024. As a result, this 
action item calls for the nomination and election of a Chair and Vice Chair of the Measure X Citizens 
Oversight Committee to serve effective January 2025 for a two-year term.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
None 
 
WEB ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 

Page 24 of 26



 

Agenda Item 7. 

 
TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY  

Memorandum  
To: Citizens Oversight Committee 

From: Theresa Wright, Community Outreach Coordinator 

Meeting Date: November 19, 2024 

Subject: Election of Audit Sub-Committee 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
CALL for nominations and ELECT members to serve on the Measure X Audit Sub-committee.  
 
SUMMARY: 
The Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee is responsible for conducting an independent audit to 
assure that Measure X funds were expended in accordance with the requirements of the 
Transportation Safety & Investment Plan and to prepare an annual audit report. This report seeks the 
nomination and election of Oversight Commitee members to serve on the audit sub-commitee with 
 the Comittee's Chair and Vice Chair to conduct the independent audit for fiscal year 2023/2024 and 
to prepare the annual audit report. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee was formed in order to oversee and provide feedback 
on the Transportation Agency's implementation of the Transportation Safety and Investment Plan. 
The Oversight Committee's purpose is to be an additional layer of accountability so that the public is 
assured that the Transportation Agency, County of Monterey and the participating cities are operating 
consistent with the terms of the Ordinance.  
 
The Committee's duties as defined in the Policies & Project Descriptions for the Transportation Safety 
& Investment Plan are as follows: 

• Conduct independent audits to assure that funds are being expended in accordance with the 
requirements of the Transportation Safety & Investment Plan; 

• Review and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the plan, prior to the 
Transportation Agency Board considerations; 

• Prepare annual reports regarding the administration of the program, to be presented to the 
Transportation Agency Board of Directors and available for public review. 

 
The duties of the subcommittee as defined above are to conduct the audit, report their findings to the 
full oversight committee and prepare the Measure X Annual Report. The committee is required to 
present their findings and the Measure X Annual Report to the TAMC Board of Directors, and to make 
their report available to the public.  

Page 25 of 26



 
In accordance with the duties defined in the Policies & Projects Description for the Transportation 
Safety & Investment Plan, this staff report seeks the nomination and election of Measure X Citizens 
Oversight Committee members to serve on the audit sub-committee with the Committee's Chair and 
Vice Chair to conduct the independent audit and prepare the annual Measure X Citizens Oversight 
Annual Report.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
None 
 
WEB ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 

Page 26 of 26


	 Agenda
	1. QUORUM CHECK - CALL TO ORDER
	2. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	3. CONSENT AGENDA
	1. Draft XTOC Minutes
	Memorandum
	Draft X-TOC Minutes - August 2024

	2. 2025 Measure X Citizens Oversight Committee Meeting
	Staff report
	Measure X Citizen Oversight Committee  2025 Calendar

	3. Transportation Excellence Awards
	Memorandum
	Transportation Excellence Awards Nomination Form 2024


	4. Measure X Annual Report
	Memorandum

	5. Brown Act Public Meeting Training
	Memorandum
	ABCs of the Brown Act (1)

	6. Election of Committee Chair and Vice Chair
	Memorandum

	7. Election of Audit Sub-Committee
	Staff report

	8. ANNOUNCEMENTS and/or COMMENTS
	9. ADJOURN



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (None)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails true
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams true
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize false
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo false
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Preserve
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Average
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages false
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Average
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages false
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 300
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Average
  /MonoImageResolution 300
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /FlateEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames false
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting true
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks true
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks true
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        9
        9
        9
        9
      ]
      /ConvertColors /NoConversion
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /NA
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements true
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers true
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MarksOffset 9
      /MarksWeight 0.125000
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /RomanDefault
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


